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Application: DR-2017-36 – 8 Lowell Road - Preservation Determination 
Subject Property: 8 Lowell Road (Assessor’s Parcel ID # 95-38-A) 

Applicant: Charlene D. Oliver 
Property Owner: Charlene D. Oliver 

Date: Report prepared 1/3/2018 for 1/9/2018 Historical Commission 
Meeting 

Staff Contact: Claudia Zarazua, Planner; Michael Zehner, Planning Director 
Staff Recommendation: Preferably Preserved 

 
APPLICATION OVERVIEW 
 
Applications for Eligibility Notice and Preservation Determination were submitted on 
December 4, 2017 indicating the intent to demolish, in its entirety, a building located on 
the property and used as a dwelling. An Eligibility Notice was issued on December 11, 
2017 determining the subject building to be an Eligible Building. A public hearing before 
the Historical Commission is scheduled for January 9, 2018.  
 
DESCRIPTION 
 
In consideration of the application for Eligibility Notice, it was determined that the 
original dwelling was constructed no earlier than September 12, 1925, the date provided 
on Building Permit “No. 1945” for the construction of a “dwelling” on 110 Cliff Road (the 
Applicant/Owner indicated the construction date to be 1931, relying on the Assessors 
Property Record Card). Further, the permit was issued for property addressed as 110 
Cliff Road; while no such address currently exists, the address was changed to 8 Lowell 
Road when the lot was subdivided into three lots in 1970 and then purchased by Lewis 
Horton. See Figure 1. 

 
Figure 1.  1935 Town Plan 

 



DR-17-36 – 8 Lowell  Road - Preservation Determination 
Staff Report prepared 1/3/2018 for 1/9/2018 Historical Commission Meeting 

 

Page 2 of 5 

The property was originally owned by developer Albion Clapp and sold to Bernard 
Arthur Behrend (B. A. Behrend) in 1925. Behrend’s widow, Margaret Behrend, sold the 
resident to Robert E. Dillon in 1941. In 1953, Walter and Annette Henry sold the 
property to Rich and Ruth Viguers. Then it was sold to Fran and Arria Ouellet in 1970. It 
was then sold to Lewis and Faith Horton in that same year. Faith Horton, widow of 
Lewis Horton, sold the property to current owner, Charlene D. Oliver, in 2017. 
 
The dwelling is a 2-story with a side-gambrel roof, minimally altered with a two car 
garage and service quarters addition from 1933. In 1927 a detached wood shed was 
built on the rear of the building. Staff believes the original architecture of the house is 
best characterized as Colonial Revival in the Dutch Colonial substyle. Based on 
research, Staff determined that the Behrend commissioned Richardson, Bancroft, 
Richardson Architects to design this building as his primary residence and laboratory. 
See Figure 2. 
 
 
 
 

 
Figure 2 . B. A. Behrend Residence Side Elevation 1925, Courtesy of Clemson University Libraries’ Special Collections and 
Archives 
 
PRESERVATION DETERMINATION STANDARDS 
 
In consideration of a Preservation Determination for the building, the Historical 
Commission is to determine whether or not the building should be Preferably Preserved, 
a term defined as building “the demolition of which that is proposed…would be 
detrimental to the historical or architectural heritage of the Town because such Building 
is (i) importantly associated with one or more historic persons or events, or with the 
architectural, cultural, political, economic or social history of the Town, the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts or the United States of America, (ii) historically or 
architecturally important by reason of period, style, method of building construction or 
association with a particular architect or builder, either by itself or in the context of a 
group of Buildings, or (iii) located within one hundred fifty (150) feet of the boundary line 
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of any federal or local historic district and contextually similar to the Buildings located in 
the adjacent federal or local historic district.” 
 
If the Commission determines that the Building should be Preferably Preserved, then no 
Demolition Permit with respect to such Building shall be issued until twelve (12) months 
after the date of the Preservation Determination. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff is of the opinion that the subject building is not (iii) located within one hundred fifty 
(150) feet of the boundary line of any federal or local historic district and contextually 
similar to the Buildings located in the adjacent federal or local historic district, but that 
the building is (i) associated with one or more historic persons or events, or with the 
architectural, cultural, political, economic or social history of the Town, the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts or the United States of America, and (ii) historically 
or architecturally important by reason of period, style, method of building construction or 
association with a particular architect or builder, either by itself or in the context of a 
group of Buildings, and not.  
 
With respect to standard (i), B. A. Behrend (1875-1932) was an electrical engineer and 
fellow of the American Institute of Electrical Engineers; the American Association for the 
Advancement of Science; the American Academy of Arts and Sciences; and a member 
of the American Society of Civil Engineers; the American Society of Mechanical 
Engineers; the Franklin Institute; and the formerly known Society for the Preservation of 
New England Antiquities, now known as Historic New England. Behrend published 
Induction Motor and other Alternating Current Motors, which he dedicated to his friends 
Nikola Tesla, Gisbert Kapp, André Blondel, and C. E. L. (Charles Eugene Lancelot) 
Brown.  In 1908, he was put in charge of the power division of the engineering 
department at Westinghouse Electric and Manufacturing in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. 
Here he introduced the plate rotor for turbo-generators. Due to health problems, he 
relocated to Massachusetts and continued working as a consulting engineer for the 
company. In 1932, he was found shot to death in his home1.  
 
With respect to standard (ii), Staff is of the opinion that the construction method and 
style of the main residence is architecturally important by reason of period and style and 
is a distinct and important example of early Colonial Revival architecture. See Figure 3 
& 4. 
 

                                                 
1 The Times from Shreveport, Louisiana on March 26, 1932 



DR-17-36 – 8 Lowell  Road - Preservation Determination 
Staff Report prepared 1/3/2018 for 1/9/2018 Historical Commission Meeting 

 

Page 4 of 5 

 
Figure 3 . B. A. Behrend Residence First Floor Plan 1925, Courtesy of Clemson University Libraries’ Special Collections and 

Archives 
 

 
Figure 4. B. A. Behrend Residence Front Elevation 1925, Courtesy of Clemson University Libraries’ Special Collections and 

Archives 
 
Therefore, based upon the above, Staff is of the opinion that the demolition of the 
subject building would be detrimental to the historical or architectural heritage of 
the Town and thus Staff recommends that the building should be deemed 
Preferably Preserved.  
 
Staff would also recommend that the Commission consider pursuing the placement of the 
property into a Single Building Historic District. 
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From the Bernard A. Behrend Collection, Mss.0240, Clemson University: 
 
B. A. Behrend (1875-1932) 
 

 Born in in Villeneuve, Switzerland 
 Married Margaret Plummer Chase (born October 7, 1895) of Brookline, 

Massachusetts in 1926 
 Son of Moritz Behrend, founder the Hammermill Paper Company in Germany 
 In his lifetime, Behrend was granted over 80 patents 
 Fellow of the American Institute of Electrical Engineers and served on a number 

of their committees 
 Worked on the development and design of alternating-current and direct-current 

electrical machinery and the design of the Jungfrau Railway. 
 Behrend became associated with the Bullock Electric Manufacturing Company of 

Cincinnati in January 1900, and was shortly thereafter appointed its chief 
engineer. Under Behrend's guidance the company successfully produced its first 
alternating-current machinery, including alternating-current generators and 
induction motors.  

 He built Bullock's first turbo-alternator, which won a grand prize at the Louisiana 
Purchase Exposition in 1904 and brought Behrend a gold medal. 

 In 1908 the Westinghouse Electric and Manufacturing Company of East 
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania invited Behrend to take charge of the power division of 
their engineering department. During this period, Behrend introduced the plate 
rotor for turbo-generators.  

 Behrend moved to Boston, Massachusetts, opened an office as a consulting 
engineer and was retained in that capacity by the Westinghouse Company for 
many years.  

 He designed large gas-engine-driven alternators for the power houses of Indiana 
Steel Company, Illinois Steel Company, United States Steel Corporation, and 
American Steel & Wire Company; 

 He designed the electric generating units for several electric power companies, 
notably a group of units for Niagara Falls, and the steam-turbine units of the 
Brooklyn Edison Company and the Brooklyn Rapid Transit Company.  

 Behrend also had an interest in architecture; he designed his own residence and 
laboratory in Wellesley Hills, Massachusetts 



 

 

Collection Name: Bernard A. Behrend Collection 

Mss/Series Identifier: Mss 240 

Box: Articles and Sketches (Behrend 001-007) – 12 

         Blueprints (Behrend 008-013) – Oversize Box 1 

Folder: Articles and Sketches (Behrend 001-007) – 104 

 Blueprints (Behrend 008-013) – 5 

Repository:  Clemson University Libraries’ Special Collections and Archives 

  

 

 

 

Notice Concerning Copyright Restrictions 

 

The Copyright Law of the United States (Title 17, United States Code) governs the making of 
photocopies or other reproductions of copyrighted material.  

 

Under certain conditions specified in the law, libraries and archives are authorized to furnish a 
photocopy or other reproduction. One of the specified conditions is that the photocopy or 
other reproduction is not to be “used for any purpose other than private study, scholarship, or 
research.” If a user makes a request for, or later uses, a photocopy or reproduction for 
purposes in excess of “fair use,” that user may be liable for copyright infringement. 

 

This institution reserves the right to refuse accepting a copying order if, in its judgment 
fulfillment of the order would involve violation of the copyright law.  

 

Clemson University Libraries’ Special Collections and Archives 

230 Kappa Street, Clemson, South Carolina 29634 

Phone: (864) 656-3031 Email: cucsl@clemson.edu 

http://library.clemson.edu/depts/specialcollections/ 






























